
1

MEETING: HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING 
GROUP

DATE: Tuesday 3rd March, 2015

TIME: 10.00 am

VENUE: Southport Town Hall

MEMBER/ASSOCIATION

South Sefton Hackney Carriage Drivers Association
Richard Jarman
Ian Stanton

North West Taxi Association
Joseph Brisdon

North Sefton Night Drivers Association
(Vacant)

Southport Station Hackney Carriage Association
John Murrison
Barry Howard

Berry Street Garage
Joe Johnson

Aintree Garages
Mike Denning

Delta Merseyside Ltd
Paul McLaughlin
Gary Beesley

Sefton Private Hire Fleet Operators Association
Mark Sanders

Ability Network
Paula Hodson

Officers
Mark Toohey (Chair), Principal Trading Standards Officer
Mike Foulkes, Senior Taxi Licensing Officer

MEETING OFFICER: Colin Auty
Email: colin.auty@sefton.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



2

This page is intentionally left blank.



3

A G E N D A

Item 
No.
 

 1.  Apologies for Absence

 2.  Minutes (Pages 7 - 
12)

Minutes of the meeting held on 9th December 
2014

 3.  Matters Arising from the Minutes

 4.  Handbook (Pages 13 - 
22)

Suggested amendments already discussed at 
the spokespersons meeting are attached.  

The group is asked to consider further 
amendments. 

 5.  Meters (Pages 23 - 
24)

Following some enquiries concerning the use of 
‘taximeters’ the attached reminder will hopefully 
clarify the Council’s view to all owners and 
operators of the current requirements.  

 

 6.  Enforcement
Enforcement statistics to follow (will be provided 
at the meeting). 

 7.  Uber (Pages 25 - 
26)

Information from Richard Jarman for 
consideration by the group. 

 8.  Cross Border Enforcement
Item raised by Paul McLaughlin.

“Delta requests that the existing concordat 
allowing officers from each Merseyside 
authority to enforce against all vehicles and 



4

drivers licensed by the five areas be UPDATED 
AND RENEWED.  We are led to believe that 
some local authorities may have held off 
authorising new officers from neighbouring 
districts because of concerns they may not hold 
the relevant qualifications.  Delta therefore 
seeks for all five Merseyside authorities to 
LIASE WITH EACH OTHER in order to agree a 
MERSEYSIDE OFFICER STANDARD (such as 
a universally accepted NVQ in taxi licensing) 
and have EVERY licensing officer who meets 
this standard be newly authorised and 
approved by all five authorities to enforce 
across the whole of Merseyside.”
 

 9.  Cross Border Liasions
Item raised by Paul McLaughlin.

“An increasing number of companies now 
operate from multiple neighbouring authorities.  
ACORN and ALPHA are both for example 
licensed by Knowsley AND Liverpool.  Delta is 
licensed by Liverpool AND Sefton.  As 
competition heats up between operators for 
securing the services of drivers licensed further 
afield than their main operating base, multi-
licence operators look set to increase.  Add to 
that the likelihood of sub-contracting 
amendments being with us in due course, it 
would seem more appropriate now than ever 
before for Merseyside’s five authorities to have 
more joined up thinking and freer discourse.  
Delta believes that all local authorities should 
try and work towards common standards in 
respect of licensing conditions and enforcement 
standard operating procedures.  Is this 
something Sefton would welcome and if so how 
can we start the ball rolling?”
 

 10.  Full Livery on Saloon Vehicles
The Council has received a request from 
Seaforth Radio Cars to reconsider the current 
condition and allow all hackney carriages to 
have full livery advertisements instead of only 
‘purpose built’ vehicles.

It is recognised that this matter has previously 
been discussed but the current views of the 
group are requested.



5

 

 11.  Grand National Arrangements (Pages 27 - 
36)

Details of the arrangements affecting all types 
of licensed vehicles during the whole festival 
are attached. 

 12.  Update on ULEV (Pages 37 - 
38)

Information received from John Smith, 
Merseytravel, regarding upcoming events at 
their office – 1 Mann Island, Liverpool.

“The Energy Savings Trust are undertaking to 
look at electric taxi charging infrastructure 
across the city region they have set up a series 
of meetings on the 4th and 5th March to speak to 
a number of various partners as part of this 
study. The dates for the trade are as follows:-

PHV trade reps – 3pm to 4pm and 4pm to 5pm 
on Wednesday 4th March.

Local Taxi Licensing Officers - 10am to 11am 
and 11am to noon on Thursday 5th March

Hackney trade reps – 2pm to 3pm and 3pm to 
4pm on Thursday 5th March

I would be grateful if you could pass on these 
details to your trade reps both Hackney and 
PHV and ask them to let me know directly 
which session they would like to attend.

I would also be grateful if you could please 
advise me which slot you would like to speak to 
EST”

Further information is attached 

 13.  Tuk Tuks
Update on recent meeting with City Tuk Tuks. 

 14.  VRQ
Update on current situation concerning the 
deadline for completing the VRQ (or NVQ). 



6

 15.  Date of next meeting *
2nd June 2015, Bootle Town Hall 

 16.  Any Other Business



1

HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP

MEETING HELD AT THE BOOTLE TOWN HALL
ON TUESDAY 9TH DECEMBER, 2014

PRESENT:

Member/Association:

Southport Station Taxi Association
Barry Howard

South Sefton Hackney Carriage Drivers Association
Richard Jarman
Ian Stanton

Delta
Paul McLaughlin

Brookfield Drive Garage
Mike Denning

Berry St Garage
Joe Johnson

Officers
Mark Toohey (Chair), Principal Trading Standards Officer
Mike Foulkes, Senior Taxi Licensing Officer

MEETING OFFICER: Colin Auty
Email: colin.auty@sefton.gov.uk

Page 7

Agenda Item 2

mailto:colin.auty@sefton.gov.uk


HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
TUESDAY 9TH DECEMBER, 2014

2

33. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

Joseph Bridson – North West Taxi Association
Mark Saunders – Delta Garages

34. MINUTES 

Agreed as a true record.

35. MATTERS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES 

RJ enquired if there were any figures on the failing of the NVQ?

PM advised that he was only aware of one historical case.

ULEV vehicles – no update

36. KNOWLEDGE TEST 

RJ & PM to report concerns over the knowledge test issue directly to 
Andrew Naisbitt for consideration in early 2015.

37. NVQ/VRQ 

521 drivers have no such qualification, this breaks down to 444 private hire 
drivers & 77 hackney drivers.

PM advised that some drivers are waiting for potential funding to become 
available.

RJ stated that some drivers may be licensed and may no longer be in the 
trade.

MT stated that drivers must have proof that they have sat the qualification 
– this is to be provided by December 2015. RJ challenged this and MT 
asserted that proof must be provided to the council in all circumstances. A 
general discussion took place about providing proof to the Council 
concerning the VRQ/NVQ.  RJ suggested that that the Council should 
accept his word if he stated that he was aware that someone had taken 
the VRQ but the certificate was missing.  This point was discussed and not 
agreed by all.  JJ stated that he was aware of drivers who had missing 
certificates so had to do the VRQ again.  RJ stated that L&R have said in 
previous meetings that individual circumstances will be considered. MT 
stated that previous minutes will be checked – RJ was happy with this.

38. ENFORCEMENT 

Page 8

Agenda Item 2



HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
TUESDAY 9TH DECEMBER, 2014

3

MT stated that the percentage of ‘fault free’ vehicles found on inspection is 
decreasing.

JJ & PM requested details of which officers from neighbouring authorities 
have joint authorisations to cover other local authorities?

PM stated he has no issues with joint authorised officers challenging a 
Sefton vehicle – however he questioned the powers of officers taking a 
Sefton vehicle off the road if they had not been properly authorised.  The 
Chair reminded the group that the Trading Standards and Licensing 
Manager was already looking into this issue.

JJ enquired as to what action was being taken in relation to the vacant taxi 
licensing enforcement officer posts? This was echoed by PM.  IS further 
echoed this by stating that in his view the number of taxis was increasing 
and the number of enforcement officers seemed to be decreasing.

MT responded to these enquiries by stating that a section review was due 
to be completed next year but the Council is going through a period of 
change with severe cuts and no decision on potential extra enforcement 
officer posts could be considered before all this is completed.

MT explained the mitigation figures to the group. RJ thanked the chair for 
this information.

MT responded to the prosecution agenda issue highlighted by RJ and 
stated that there were 7 prosecutions ongoing – most were in relation to 
Liverpool hackney drivers who had picked up passengers within the Sefton 
area.

39. INSURANCE 

RJ raised the published agenda item regarding a settle driver not being 
able to access a copy of an insurance document that relates to their settle 
vehicle and requested a handbook change.

PM explained that no insurance as opposed to not being covered for 
plying for hire does put the travelling public at a much greater risk.

JJ said Delta & SRC both require valid insurance to be in place prior to a 
driver logging onto the system.

RJ stated that drivers need to be entitled to see policy certificates if the 
wish to see them. RJ would like to see handbook amended to say a driver 
is entitled to view policies.

MT advised that handbook changes will be circulated and considered in 
January prior to them being put in place but was unsure why a driver 
cannot just ask the vehicle owner for a copy of the insurance document?

Page 9

Agenda Item 2



HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
TUESDAY 9TH DECEMBER, 2014

4

JJ enquired on the progress of the testing station review. MT advised that 
this was on the 2015 work plan.

40. DATA 

RJ raised an agenda item regarding subject Data Access. 

MT advised that the council has no problem with any licensed driver 
accessing their own personal information held by the council as per the 
requirements of the Data Protection Act.

RJ raised another data concern on whether council officers routinely 
snoop on licence holders personal social media accounts?

MT advised that investigating officers do not monitor any licence holder’s 
social media accounts routinely.  Accounts have been looked at but only in 
the course of an investigation and when it is believed that they contain 
information relevant to an investigation such as unlicensed operators.  
This is conducted in line with government guidelines. It was further stated 
that this only relates to publicly available information. Information that is 
stored online ‘privately’ requires a RIPA authorisation approved by a court 
to be accessed. MT further asserted that licence holders social media 
accounts are not routinely viewed by officers.

41. HOURS WORKED/UBER 

RJ raised this agenda item as published and enquired if council policy can 
state the number of hours that they believe a driver should not work over 
and that they do not approve of?

PM stated that taxi driving is significantly different to private hire driving 
and persons who drive all have different strengths and weaknesses.  
Drivers want the freedom to work hours that suit them and this may run 
over a significant number of hours during the week.

MT this would not be an enforceable policy – the council would not be able 
to monitor all the hours drivers work and questioned what sanctions would 
be in place if this policy was breached?  MT suggested that it could be 
taken to the members for consideration in January.

PM said the council and operators should not be interfering with self 
employed drivers.

JJ stated that this is not in the council’s remit and would be a waste of 
time.

MT stated that RJ is entitled to ask for this item to be submitted for 
consideration in January. MT further commented on RJ’s point over 
UBER’s statement that agreements are subject to Netherlands law that a 

Page 10

Agenda Item 2



HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
TUESDAY 9TH DECEMBER, 2014

5

point can go in the handbook to state that licenses are issued under 
English law.

42. COST OF A MEDICAL 

RJ stated he knows of a driver that has been charged £100 for a medical 
by his GP.

PM said in Liverpool a driver can be charged less than he is in Sefton and 
that he feels local authorities should co-ordinate over these costs.

RJ asked if guidance be sought from the BMA over cost?

MT agreed with RJ’s point above but stated that a medical should be done 
by a drivers own GP as per our conditions.

JJ said surely any registered GP can conduct a medical?

PM asked if local councils could agree a standard for both medicals AND 
previous convictions?

MF explained that drug/alcohol dependency can only be declared by a 
subjects own doctor as only your GP will have full access to all the 
relevant records.

RJ requested that the Council investigate what other LA’s are doing and 
seek guidance from the BMA about the standard cost of a medical.

43. PARKING CHARGES 

RJ relayed agenda information to group.

44. VEHICLE CONDITIONS/SAFETY 

RJ said vehicle safety is governed by the construction and use regulations 
and the compliance test items only. No other members disagreed with this 
point.

45. WORKPLAN/OUTSTANDING ISSUES 

Bootle OSS

JJ & MD both stated that the Bootle OSS is at the best it has ever been.

Handbook Review

MT stated it was to be on the January meeting agenda.

Page 11

Agenda Item 2



HACKNEY CARRIAGE/PRIVATE HIRE JOINT WORKING GROUP- 
TUESDAY 9TH DECEMBER, 2014

6

Vacant Hackney Licenses

MT this will be dealt with in January/February – MT will consult members.

Testing Station Review

JJ stated not happy with the way that there is inconsistency between 
boroughs, testing stations within Sefton and enforcement officers. Mr. 
Johnson would like vehicle testing standards to be made uniform and not 
based on individual opinion, with bodywork inconsistency being the much 
greater problem than the mechanical side.

MT this will be discussed in the testing station sub group meeting in the 
New Year.

Knowledge Test

MT this has already been discussed

46. SAFEGUARDING 

MT circulated the letter from the Sefton Local Safeguarding Children 
Board to the group and asked that any relevant names are submitted to 
the group for attendance.  The group agreed with the value of the 
messages being portrayed and would support the project.

47. CHRISTMAS ARRANGEMENTS 

MT explained that the OSS will be opening on the working days between 
Christmas and New Year and on the 2nd of January 2015.

48. DATE OF NEXT MEETING * 

MT January meeting is on 27th at Southport.

49. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

None

Page 12

Agenda Item 2



Summary of handbook review as at 3rd March 2015

This group is requested to agree on the finalised changes and the creation of version 
3 of the Handbook by 9th March 2015.  

Any items that cannot be agreed will be presented to Licensing and Regulatory 
Committee on 30th March 2015 for a final decision.

Summary of the amendments already considered (table attached):

 Signage on private hire vehicles to be changed from “telephone number” to 
“method of contact” – agreed

 Correction of various wordings - agreed
 Introduction of new offences (terrorism, grooming (and other related sex 

offences), producing/cultivating drugs, perverting the course of justice and 
battery) - agreed

 Rewording of sexual offences sections to include the work of the safeguarding 
team when assessing ‘fit & proper’ - agreed

 Additional messages from safeguarding & public health team – agreed
 Return to group 1 medical – not agreed
 Knowledge test to last a lifetime – for consideration in the knowledge test 

review so will not be included here

Current matters outstanding:

The group to consider any amendments not previously agreed at the last meeting 
including:

1. A general statement about drivers hours – agreed but wording to be finalised
2. The consideration of an additional council disqualification period following the 

return of a DVLA licence following a ‘totting up’ disqualification e.g. 12 month 
DVLA ban would mean an additional 6 months disqualification from applying 
for a HC/PH driver licence following the return of DVLA licence, a 6 month 
ban would incur an additional 3 months etc.

3. Inclusion of current list of fees (attached)
4. Reference to the council website for up to date information 

(http://www.sefton.gov.uk/business/licensing-registration/taxi-licensing.aspx)
5. Update list of testing stations
6. Update list of trade associations
7. Signposting of VRQ providers
8. Inclusion of requirement to carry guide/assistance dogs (Equality Act)
9. Any further amendments that need consideration?

Version 3 of the handbook will be circulated shortly after this meeting.

Page 13

Agenda Item 4

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/business/licensing-registration/taxi-licensing.aspx


This page is intentionally left blank



Suggested amendments to Handbook v2

13/01/15 18:35:03

Number Section Topic and Supporting Information Current Wording Suggested Changes/Wording Author

1 Part 8b Signage on private hire vehicles.  Methods of 
bookings are no longer restricted to phone 

numbers so operators should be free to 
choose their preferred method of contact 

which is now varied.  Signage would 
continue to state “PRIVATE HIRE ONLY” and 
will not be able to advertise a mobile phone 
number carried in the vehicle or use words 

such as taxi or cab.

“The telephone number 
and name of the 

operator”

“The operator name and method(s) of contacting 
the operator (i.e. phone number, email address, 

phone application, website address etc.)”

Delta 
Merseyside 

Ltd

2 Part 11a Correction of wording “Private vehicle” “Private hire vehicle” SMBC
3 Part 4d Amendment of wording “Defect Notice” x 2 “Advisory Notice” SMBC
4 Annex 2 Additional safeguarding message from 

Safeguarding team
N/A To be included as Annex 2 SMBC

5 Annex 10 Additional health messages for drivers from 
Public Health team

N/A To be included as Annex 10 (all other Annex 
numbers will need to be corrected).

SMBC

6 Annex 1, Part 5d Additional offences to be included N/A Inclusion of assault by penetration, grooming, 
trafficking or any sexual exploitation offences, 

making or distributing obscene materials, 
possession of indecent materials including child 

pornography or similar offences.  Increase 
minimum disqualification period from 5 to 10 

years.

SMBC

7 Annex 1, Part 5c Additional offences to be included N/A Include the offence of producing/cultivating 
drugs

SMBC

8 Annex 1, Part 5f Additional matters to be taken into account N/A Totting up a significant number of points to be 
included as a reason for 

refusing/suspending/revoking a licence.

SMBC

9 Annex 1, Part 3c Additional material N/A Inclusion of a suspended prison sentence when 
taking into account the disqualification period

SMBC

10 Annex 1, Part 4 Correction of wording “Multiply” “Multiple” SMBC
11 Annex 1, Part 

5b(2)(i)
Additional offences to be included N/A Add terrorism offences SMBC

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 4



Suggested amendments to Handbook v2

13/01/15 18:35:03

12 Annex 1, Part 
5b(2)(ii)

Additional offences to be included N/A Add pervert the course of justice offences SMBC

13 Annex 1, Part 
5b(2)(iv)

Additional offences to be included/moved N/A Include battery with common assault.  Move 
“Assault Police” from 5b(2)(ii) to 5b(2)(iv)

SMBC

14 Introduction Additional paragraph N/A “Please ensure you also read Annex 2 regarding 
safeguarding children and young people and child 
sexual exploitation.  As a taxi driver you are well 
placed to see signs of children and young people 
being exploited or abused.  Information you have 
heard or seen could be vital to keeping the child 
or young person safe.”

SMBC

15 Part 1g Additional sentence N/A “The Fit and Proper Assessment process will 
ensure that the Council Safeguarding Children’s 

Unit is consulted with regard to individuals 
presenting a risk to children and young people.”

SMBC

16 Part 1j Additional sentence N/A “In cases of a risk being presented to children and 
young people a senior representative of the 

Sefton Council Safeguarding Children Unit will sit 
on the Mitigation Panel.”

SMBC

17 Annex 1, Part 8 Additional sentence N/A “If information recorded on the DBS relates to a 
risk to children and young people a senior 

representative of the Sefton Council Safeguarding 
Unit will be consulted for their professional 

advice as to whether the applicant is a ‘Fit and 
Proper’ individual to be granted a licence”

SMBC

18 Annex 1, Part 
5(d)(i)

Change of paragraph “Where the commission 
of a sexual offence 
involves a child or 
young person an 

application for a licence 
will normally be 

refused”

“Where the commission of a sexual offence 
involves a child or young person, or a driver has 

sexually exploited a young person, an application 
for a licence will normally to be refused.”

SMBC

19 Annex 1, Part 5g Additional sentence N/A “With regard to applications which pose a risk to 
children and young people a senior 

SMBC

P
age 16

A
genda Item

 4



Suggested amendments to Handbook v2

13/01/15 18:35:03

representative of the Sefton Councils 
Safeguarding Children Unit will sit on the 

Mitigation Panel.”

20 New Annex? New Council policy/statement regarding 
maximum working hours of drivers. 

N/A TBA SSHCDA

21 Part 8b New condition restricting the use of the 
word ‘Taxi’.  

(Section 48 of the 1976 Act currently prohibits 
any private hire vehicle from being of such design 

or appearance as to lead any person to believe 
the vehicle is a hackney carriage).

Part 8b currently 
restricts the use of the 

words ‘Taxi’ or ‘Cab’ but 
only in relation to 

descriptions of vehicles

TBA SSHCDA

22 VRQ? Help! SSHDCA
23 Inspections Help again! SSHCDA
24 Training update? Not sure what this will involve or how we word 

it?
SSHCDA

25 Owners conditions Help SSHCDA
26 E7 Should be classed as TX1? Is this for the age requirements? SSHCDA
27 Annex 8 Refresh list of trade rep contact details SMBC
28 Include contact list for NTA? SSHCDA
29 VRQ & Knowledge Test to last lifetime VRQ already does but KT only valid for 2 years if 

away from the job.  Change this to lifetime.
SSHCDA

30 GP1 Is this a request to change the medical back to 
group 1?

31 English Law

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 4



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Sefton MBC Taxi & Private Hire Licensing Unit

Standard fees chargeable as at June 2014

All Hackney Carriage, Private Hire, Horse and Pedicab Omnibus Driver’s Licences- 
On application Disclosure & Barring Service Check (DBS) (formerly CRB)        = £44.00

DVLA Check fee(s) payable: Online enquiry = £1.00
or Written/paper enquiry* = £5.00

*the written/paper check will normally only be required if further detailed information is required or the 
online checking system is not available.  Online checks will be available from 1st July 2014 onwards.

New Drivers (maximum 3 year) licence fee will not be more than                        = £57.60

Renewals of Driver’s Licences maximum licence fee will not be more than        = £57.60
(Renewal applicant’s will on average only have a DBS/DVLA check every three years)

All other periods of driver’s licences will be calculated at a rate per calendar month of  = £1.60

All Vehicle Licences-
Prior to formally applying at a One Stop Shop a vehicle will need to be tested at a 
Nominated Compliance Station (or in the case of Horse & Pedicab Omnibuses by a 
specialist) for which a separate fee is payable to that facility. Currently that varies between
£40 to £50 for motor vehicles and up to £75 for non motor vehicles

Private Hire Vehicles up to eight years old- 12 month Licences = £110.00
Private Hire Vehicles over eight years old- 6 month Licences = £64.00
All Hackney Carriages up to eight years old- 12 month Licences = £140.00
Non Metropolitan Hackney Cabs over eight years old- 6 month Licences = £74.00
Metropolitan Hackney cabs between 8-11 years- 12 month Licences = £140.00
Metropolitan Hackney cabs over 11 years- 6 month Licences = £74.00
Horse Omnibuses- any age- 12 month Licences = £100.00
Pedicab Omnibuses- 12 month Licences = £50.00

All Private Hire Operator’s Licences-
Once Planning Approval has been produced for an Operating premises within Sefton the 
fee payable depends on the numbers of vehicles to be operated. An applicant can apply 
for a one year minimum licence or a five year maximum licence. The fees shown are
per year.

Operate 1 to 2 vehicles = £25.00
Operate 3 to 50 vehicles = £125.00
Operate 51to 100 vehicles = £150.00
Operate 100+ vehicles = £175.00

Miscellaneous Fees-
Transfer of Hackney Driver licence to Private Hire- = £15.50
Transfer of Private Hire Driver licence to Hackney- = £15.50
Duplicate Licence (any type)- = £10.50
Duplicate driver’s badge or internal Vehicle plate- = £5.00
Duplicate External Vehicle Plate- = £10.50

Minimum Solicitor & Road Traffic Accident Written Enquiry Response Fees-

If approved for release of data (fee is shown exclusive of 20% VAT)       =        £30.00
Page 19

Agenda Item 4



This page is intentionally left blank



                                                             
                                                    

Each year The Guide Dogs for the Blind Association 
along with Sefton Taxi Licensing Department 
receive complaints in relation to members of the 
public with Guide & Assistance Dogs being refused 
access into licensed vehicles.  These customers 
use these valuable and well trained dogs to assist 
them with their daily activities and are a part of their 
everyday life.

It is an offence to refuse Guide & Assistance Dogs 
access into any licensed vehicle. Fines up to £5000 
can be imposed for refusing. Exemption from these 
duties, can only be obtained on Medical Grounds, 
otherwise there is no exception. Contact Taxi 
Licensing, Sefton Council should you require an 
Exemption Certificate. 

Please give these important and paying 
customers every courtesy and assistance.

Don’t hesitate to contact Sefton Licensing or The 
Guide Dogs for the Blind Association should you 

require further information.

www.Sefton.gov.uk
www.Guidedogs.org.uk

Page 21

Agenda Item 4

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



Taximeters are prescribed equipment and require ‘pattern approval’ which details 
their specifications and workings.  They are subject to allowable maximum errors 
and must be capable of being placed into different operating modes such as ‘for 
hire’, ‘hired’ and ‘stopped’.  The essential requirements that govern taximeters clearly 
state that it is a “device that works together with a signal generator” and that it is a 
device which “measures duration, calculates distance on the basis of a signal 
delivered by the distance signal generator”.

All meters in Hackney Carriage vehicles shall be fitted, calibrated and sealed to each 
vehicle and be subject to these requirements.

There is no requirement to fit a taximeter to a private hire vehicle but only taximeters 
that have been tested and approved by the Council may be fitted in private hire 
vehicles.  Any person who fails to follow this process will be in breach of Section 71 
of the Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976:

“Taximeters.

(1) Nothing in this Act shall require any private hire vehicle to be equipped 
with any form of taximeter but no private hire vehicle so equipped shall be 
used for hire in a controlled district unless such taximeter has been tested 
and approved by or on behalf of the district council for the district or any 
other district council by which a vehicle licence in force for the vehicle was 
issued.

(2) Any person who—

(a) tampers with any seal on any taximeter without lawful excuse; or

(b) alters any taximeter with intent to mislead; or

(c) knowingly causes or permits a vehicle of which he is the proprietor to be 
used in contravention of subsection (1) of this section,

shall be guilty of an offence.”

The Council does not currently consider GPS tracking systems that calculate a price 
to be approved taximeters.  Any private hire operator that wants to use taximeters 
should first seek approval from the Council

The Council is aware of the case in London that is considering whether GPS 
technology can comply with the current legal requirements and will consider the 
decision of the High Court accordingly.

Page 23

Agenda Item 5



This page is intentionally left blank



UBER
 
Firstly,  the customer agress with both Uber locally & UBER BV, a Netherlands 
company,  which provides part of the service (expressley that part is set out  
not to be for transportation, but for charging & providing the software 
nesessary to use the whole srvice).

That part s agreed (in English) as a Netherlands contract, this is allowed 
under EU law. BUT a court / arbitrator MUST of it’s own volition consider 
firstly if that is  ‘fair’. It is vanashingly unlikely that the provision would stand; 
UK samll claims courts are so cheap, accesible and useable. Who can acess a 
foreign arbitrator?

Secondly “PHV licencing” also encompasses the matters set oput in the 1976 
Act  but  also the general law; “Trading Standards” have to be upheld see:

SI 2008/1277 CONSUMER PROTECTION FROM UNFAIR 
TRADING REGULATIONS 2008 as amended

These Regulations implement Directive 2005/29 subject to 
substantial amendment.

These regulations are enforced  in the jurisdiction and relate (regardless of 
the ‘jurisdiction’ clause) to arrangements made here; most of the regulations 
have criminal sanctions actionable in this jurisdiction  which must be 
investigated here.

Thirdly; the local operating company is the alter ego, and  on a full reading of 
the contracts is acting as agent for, in concert with, and on behalf of  UBER 
BV. They both act in concert within the meaning of “operate” in section 80 of 
the LGMP Act 1976 and both act as operators requiring a licence.

UBER should therefore be asked to put forward a working system that clearly 
complies with & is capable of transparent investigation & enforcement. The 
licensing regime clearly includes the “trading standards requirements” at least 
in so far as these are (by design) so difficult consider given the current 
business model.

From the standpoint of the drivers the local Uber operator & UBER BV operate 
a cartel actionable by the CMA (Competition Markets Authority)

Additionally fares are calculated by UBER BV using a GPS device that does not 
comply with :  “The Measuring Instruments (Taximeters) Regulations SI 2304 
of 2006 NO and cannot therefore by approved under S71(1) of the LGMP Act 
1976; the device is anyway out of the jurisdiction but cannot thereby escape 
the local licensing regime.

SI 2304 of 2006 follows an EU provision.

Page 25

Agenda Item 7



This page is intentionally left blank



Grand National 8th- 11th  April 2015 - Bus & Taxi Briefing Notes. 

This document is intended to provide general advice to buses and licensed Taxis from Liverpool and Sefton 
for the Crabbies' Grand National. 	 1111  

Please note that the road closures on Melling Road, Greenwich Road and Seeds Lane are there for safety 
and do not provide access to any vehicles, on ingress, other than Emergency Services and residents only. 
Please respect these closures which operate on all three days of racing. 

Also, any Taxi accessing the closures on Seeds Lane, Melling Road, Greenwich Road, Bridle Road and 
Park Lane must be a licensed Hackney Cab intending to pick up from the official ranks ONLY. No picking 
up of passengers may take place in any other location other than on the rank. Please be patient 
whilst ranking. Keep all doors locked until at the front of rank to collect. Taxi Licensing & Police will be 
present to enforce the requirements of the Transport Management Plan. Any pre-booked fares should be 
directed to the Goals Centre on Park Lane, or to the A59 service road opposite the retail parks for 
collection. 

These Taxi facilities are in place for your benefit. Please respect the direction of all traffic stewards at all 
times, else the facility may be removed in future years. The plan may be subject to change at any time 
under the discretion of the Event Traffic Management Co-ordinator should any incident occur requiring this 

1:1  eventuality. 

It is the intention at the end of racing on these days to maintain safety and minimise disruption to the [11 general public, at the same time as facilitating race goers leaving the event. Road Closures will be 
implemented at the following locations; 

• Ormskirk Road/Topham Drive 	 fJ 
• Park Lane/Bridle Road 
• Warbreck Moor/Black Bull 
• Warbreck Moor/Albany Road 
• Albany Road/Harradon Road 
• Greenwich RoadlLongmoor Lane 
• Seeds Lane/Longmoor Lane 111 

Liverpool Taxi's Thursday, Friday & Saturday — at the end of the event will be allowed to rank in Melling 
Road between Seeds Lane and Greenwich Road. Access is strictly via Seeds Lane ONLY. 

Please ensure that U-Turns are not carried out on Seeds Lane.  

Sefton Taxi's Thursday, Friday & Saturday — at the end of the event will be allowed to rank on the South 
111  side of Park Lane (at the bus stop). In addition they may also park on the North side of Park Lane prior to 

the crown of the Bridge to Parkfield Avenue. Access should be via Bridle Road/Park Lane. 

Sefton Taxi's will be allowed through the road closure at Bridle Road and Park Lane to access the rank. 

Buses — at the end of the event buses will rank on the A59 in a Southerly direction, the head of the rank 
will be adjacent to Church Avenue. Buses need to be inside the closure by no later than 16:00hrs. 

The following map shows the respective areas for buses, Liverpool taxis and Sefton taxis to rank at the end 
of the event. 

Page 27

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Anta 

....„ • .... •  ................. 	• • 

McDonald's 

BRestaurants 
!fel 

DIRECTION OF TRAVEL FOR TAXIS 

; 

I SEFTON TAXI RAM FOR 
ALL 3 DAYS 

.......... ..... 	
.... 41/ 

/ 	. 	. 	 ...... 	... 	 ...... 	............ 	........ 	
...... 

1  UVERPOOL TAXI RPM FOR. 
ALL 3 DAYS 

14;e0§-  

, 

(c3.- 

4 More 

P.•\ , 
= • 	.9.  I .1:77.sti 	 %mug rens mufti* 

\ 	% CA' 	\ 
DIRECTION OF TRAVEL FOR MBES  

	 • ------TIr--  

451871 	. 	i 

' 	I c- Raines 
Coffee  Or 

DIRECTION OF TRAVEL FOR TAXIS 

Buses need to be inside the closure by no later than 16:00hrs 

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



THE 

IES  

20 

I 

14 KO 
To The Occupier, 

Re: The Crabbie's Grand National Meeting — 9th 10th  11th  April 2015 

Notification of Planned Road Closures 

Once again, this year the implementation of the road closures for the Aintree Grand National Meeting and management of them 
prior to and during the event will be carried out by Aintree Racecourse Company Ltd. Aintree Racecourse has contracted SEP 
Traffic Management Company to manage the closures on their behalf. Merseyside Police has supported both SEP and Aintree 
in the planning of the above. 

The plan is aimed at the safety of persons attending the event and the local communities, whilst working to minimise the 
disruption that it causes. Your understanding and assistance is requested to help Aintree Racecourse Ltd, SEP and Merseyside 
Police in carrying out their job. 

The following road closure will operate on Thursday 9th, Friday 1 	& Saturday 11th  April 2015 between the hours of 4pm and 
8pm to facilitate the safe movement of vehicles and pedestrians at the end of the race meeting: 

Warbreck Moor between Park Lane and the Black Bull, including all side streets. 

Ormskirk Road between Topham Drive and Park Lane. 

Park Lane between Ormskirk Road and Bridle Road 

Please note that during exceptional circumstances it may be necessary to implement any or all of the above closures outside of 
the pre-determined hours detailed without prior notice. 

If you should see anything suspicious, or of an unusual nature in the run up to or indeed during the Grand National Race 
meeting please contact Crime Stoppers on 0800 555 111. In the case of an urgent call you should use the '999' system as you 
would for any normal emergency requiring immediate Police attention. 

Enquiries relating to Traffic issues  should be directed to SEP on 07774 579 660. Please note this line only operates 
during the operational hours of the event (08:00 — 20:00 Wednesday to Saturday). 

Please find attached a schedule of road closures and parking restrictions which will be put in place as part of the traffic 
management plan. 

Yours Sincerely 

Carl Pastor 

Operations Manager 
Aintree Racecourse 

15 

II 

Page 31

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Grand National Meeting 2015 

Da° LAubut e 
Access  Road Closure Times & Dates 

—No Access Ormskirk Road 
Topham Drive to the Black Bull on 
Warbreck Moor, including all side 
streets and Hall Lane. 

16:00 — 20:00 	 . 
Thursday 9h, Friday 10th  & Saturday 11th  

Park Lane 
Bridle Road to Ormskirk Road 

16:00 — 20:00 
Thursday 9th  , Friday 10th  & Saturday 11th  

Melling Road 
	  Seeds Lane to Aintree Lane. 

19:00 Wednesday 8th 	—20:00 Saturday 11th 

Access to 
residents with 
a utility bill 

Melling Road 
Warbreck Moor to Seeds Lane 

0700-20:00 
Thursday 9th  , Friday 10th  & Saturday 11

th  

Albany Road 
Warbreck Moor to Greenwich 
Road  

16:00 — 20:00 
Thursday 9th  , Friday 101h  & Saturday 111h  

Seeds Lane 
From Railway bridge to Melling 
Road  

07:00 - 20:00 
Thursday 9th , Friday 10"1  & Saturday 111h  

Abbeystead 	Avenue 	and 

Raymond Avenue 
	  At the junction to Park Lane 

16:00 — 20:00 
Thursday 9th  , Friday 10th  & Saturday 11th  

Access is via 
Melling Road 
from Seeds 
Lane with 
utility bill (one 
way system in 
operation) 

Greenwich 	Road 	and 	all 	other 
roads off of Greenwich Road. All 
residents MUST access via Seeds 
and Melling from 1600hrs as there 
will be a road closure on 
Greenwich 	at 	its 	junction 	with 
Longmoor Lane. 

16:00 — 20:00 
Thursday 9th  , Friday 10th  & Saturday 11th  
There may be a delay between 17:30 and 18:30 at the junction of 
Seeds Lane and Melling Road on Saturday11Th  as a large number 
of pedestrians leave the Racecourse. Please be aware that you 
may be asked to wait for a short time until vehicle movements are 
allowed. There is an option to park your car in the Railway Club 
car park — please ask stewards if you wish to do this. 

• 
BIKIFICI rcebtret.a.luti 	(I litil 	uay, 

Restriction   
. 	maay 	..: ..o.,4.......,......, 

Road 

No Waiting Both Sides Bridle Road (Park Lane to Farriers Way), Farriers Way, Greenwich Road (cemetery side 
only), Heysham Road from Service Road to Industrial Estate Only, Melling Road (from 
Warbreck Moor to Seeds Lane), Ormskirk Road West side from Park Lane to Topham 
Drive, Park Lane (from Ormskirk Rd to Lichfield Close), Seeds Lane, Warbreck Moor 
(Park Lane to railway bridge). Aintree Lane, School Lane, The Crescent, Wango Lane & 

	  Service Road 
No Waiting 15 metres into 
Junction Only 

	  Road, Barlows Lane 

Ashcroft Road, Cambridge Road, Ealing Road, Melling Avenue, Oxford Road, Parkfield 
Avenue, Roosevelt Drive, Rugby Road, Fir Grove, Chaser Close & Foxhunter Close, to 
Seagram Close, Raymond Avenue, Abbeystead Avenue, Olive Grove. 
Albany Road, Church Avenue, Coerton Road, Eastbourne Road, Helsby Road, Heswall 
Road, Hooton Road, Kingswood Avenue, Lyncott Road, Redlands Road, Wyresdale 

No 	Waiting 	Racecourse 
Side 

Longmoor Lane (from Greenwich Road to Railway Station). 

One Way System  

A one way system will be in operation along Melling Road from the junction of Seeds Lane to the junction of 
Greenwich Road and along Greenwich Road from the junction Melling Road to the junction of Albany road 16:00 until 

20:00 on Thursday 9th  Friday 10
1h  & Saturday 11th• U-turns will be prohibited during this period on Seeds Lane. 

No Waiting Cones will be placed for the guidance of drivers, the waiting restrictions will be enforced and vehicles illegally parked 

may be removed. 

Limited time will be permitted for residents to load and unload vehicles. To ensure access through to load/unload it will be 
essential for residents to carry some identification confirming their address, i.e. Utility Bill or Driving Licence, to produce to 

Stewards at Road Closure locations. NO ACCESS WILL BE PERMITTED WITHOUT PROOF OF ADDRESS. 

Your co-operation is essential in the interests of road safety and your own convenience. 

Enquiries relating to Traffic Issues  should be directed to SEP on  07770 579 660  during the operational times of the 

event (08:00 — 20:00 Wednesday to Saturday) 

Aintree Racecourse will again be offering residents a concession of two Steeplechase Enclosure tickets for the price of one 

on Grand National Day this year. To receive this concession, please go to the Sales Office on the Racecourse before Friday 
28" March, where you can purchase your tickets. Vouchers are not required but you should take with you two utility bills as 

proof of address. 

NB: This offer is non-transferable and cannot be used in conjunction with any other offer. Tickets are subject to availability, 

on a first come first served basis and limited to 4 per household. 
Page 33

Agenda Item 11



This page is intentionally left blank



NELLING ROAD: CLOSED AT JUNCTION OF SEEDS LANE TO JUNCTION OF 
AINTREE LANE FROM 19:00HRS WEDNESDAY 8TH UNTIL 20:00FRS SATURDAY 
11TH APRIL (BLUE LINE) 

TI-E DIVERSION IS VEILING ROAD, WARBRECK MOOR, ORMSKIRK ROAD, 
AINTREE LANE AND VICE VERSA 

Vale _ 

LU 
1ff 	- 

-FleetWoOds 

.C94 
/9- 

011
et4-1

os  

.1 	-- 
/413,  

0 -Aintree 

, 

ISEEDS LANE, N431ING ROAD AND GREENWICH ROAD: CLOSED DAILY FROM 
07:00I-RS UNTIL 20:00HRS, THURSDAY 9TH TO SATURDAY 11TH APRIL - 
Resident access ONLY (BLACK LINE) 

i  MELUNG ROAD, GREENWICH ROAD AND HEYSHAM ROAD (at the bridge): ONE 

1  WAY EACH DAY FROM 16:001-RS UNTIL 20:001-RS, 11-RJRSDAY 9TH TO 
SATURDAY 1 1GTH APRIL (LIGHT BLUE) 

IFULL  ROAD CLOSURES DAILY FROM 16 :00i-RS UNTIL 20:M-RS, THURSDAY 
9IFI TO SATURDAY 11Th - (RED LINE) 

TFE DIVERSION ROUTE IS MARKED IN GREEN 

ai 

Retail and Bus Pk  
.0% 

a 

#1
4 
	 Old Roan' 

• 	ntree Racecourse 

Netherton 

9 
044  

0- -- 

-0.,,?0 	P 	 . ,e
•% 	 b 	-,-.P. 	 • N.,  

-A 	el -4. 	 m CZ' 	 tt V 	
',.. 	 Cj 

-n ct.,. 	 ID  
3_ - --- 

sl.  - 

	

13 	North 

	

o 	Park 

	

a- 	 ol 	_ cz. _ 

;  

[AFT.ODI 

Orrell Park 

ro q5a-2ccg 	rvy 	.  

Kirkdale 

dy Lane_l 	S".14. • 

Liverpool 

z  

—1.3)rvdrhooeLOTIO-L--  

e, 

,geg 

„ Victoria 

8r°°kfleia-  brive  
IE.-.1■571 

Evertor! Cemetery 

Grand National Road Closures: Wednesday 8th  — Saturday 11th  April 2015 

II ill MI 11M 1111 "mi -us  

P
age 35

A
genda Item

 11



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Schedule of Services

OLEV has committed to providing a £500 million package of measures to support the 
development and use of ultra low emission vehicles (ULEVs) from 2015 to 2020. This includes 
making least £20m available to support a step change in taxi fleets through the introduction of 
ULEV taxis. We believe that any bid application would be greatly enhanced by an evidence-
based report showing how chargepoint infrastructure could be deployed to support this sector.

Therefore the aim of this project will be primarily to determine the number and locations of 
charging infrastructure to support the introduction of plug-in taxis.

The specific project objectives are to:
 Estimate the number of chargepoints required
 Identify suitable locations for the infrastructure
 Provide information on potential installation challenges
 Engage with local authorities and taxi drivers to understand local requirements and 

challenges
 Produce a roadmap for the next steps in planning the proposed network

Energy Saving Trust will:
 Gain an understanding of the taxi sector within Merseytravel’s jurisdiction
 Investigate taxi drivers’ working patterns, including:

o Average daily mileage (working / commuting)
o Average daily hours (working / commuting)
o Diurnal and weekly shift and mileage patterns
o Locations where they frequently pick up and drop off passengers
o Estimated rank waiting times
o Locations where they frequently take breaks and their duration

 Open-ended discussions with relevant local authorities / licencing bodies
 Meet with the relevant Distribution Network Operator and taxi drivers’ representative 

body
 Analyse the data collated to meet the objectives detailed above
 Prepare a map showing the proposed chargepoint locations
 Propose a business model for the installation of the network, including:

o Comment on options for funding the capital costs and propose how Merseytravel 
can explore these further

o Advise on payment methods for chargepoint users
o Advise on setting appropriate fees per use

 Prepare a report for internal use by Merseytravel

MerseyTravel will:
 Confirm (prior to signing a contract) that:

Page 37

Agenda Item 12



o The relevant local authorities hold email addresses for a significant proportion of 
the taxi drivers within their jurisdiction

o These authorities will be willing to send out communications to these drivers on 
our behalf.

 Work with local authorities to ensure a survey and any supplementary questions or 
requests for clarification are sent out to taxi drivers for whom an email address is 
available.

 Set up and facilitate meetings with the DNO, local authorities and taxi drivers’ 
representative body

Proposed timescale:

Mid-February Contract agreed and counter-signed
End of February Meetings with local authorities, DNO and drivers’ representatives
March Survey to be sent out in early March for completion by month end
April Data analysis and mapping; follow-up meetings as required
Mid-May Initial draft submitted to MerseyTravel for review

Page 38

Agenda Item 12


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	4 Handbook
	Handbook Review (1)
	taxi-and-private-hire-licence-fees
	Guide Dog Information -Web Page

	5 Meters
	7 Uber
	11 Grand National Arrangements
	Page 1
	09-14-42@25_02_15
	Page 1

	09-15-10@25_02_15
	Page 1

	09-15-30@25_02_15
	Page 1

	09-15-59@25_02_15
	Page 1


	12 Update on ULEV

